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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Garanti Faktoring Hizmetleri A.§.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Garanti Faktoring Hizmetleri A.S. (“the Company™) as
at 31 December 2010, and the statement of income, cash flow and changes in equity for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. .

Explanation Regarding Responsibility of the Company’s Board of Directors’:

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for the preparation and fair présentation of the
financial statements in accordance with the communiqué on “the application of uniform chart of accounts
and its guide book in connection to the establishment and main activities of Finance Leasing, Factoring and
Financing Companies and “the Format of the Publicly Disclosed Financial Statements” published in the
Official Gazette dated 17 May 2007 and numbered 26525, Turkish Accounting Standards, Turkish
Financial Reporting Standards and other regulations, communiqués, and circulars announced by the
Banking Regulation and Supervision Board in respect of accounting and financial reporting, and
pronouncements made by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency. This responsibility includes:
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the regulation on “Licensing and Operations of Audit Firms in Banking”
published in the Official Gazette no: 26333 on 1 November 2006 and the International Standards on
Auditing. We planned and performed our audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and the procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the consideration of the effectiveness of internal control and
appropriateness of accounting policies applied relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion stated below.

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited



Deloitte.

Independent Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Garanti Faktoring Hizmetleri A.S. as at 31 December 2010 and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the regulations, communiqués, and circulars
anmounced by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Board in respect of accounting and financial
reporting, and pronouncements made by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency.

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to the following matter:

As explained in Note 2.6, the Company has restated its prior year financial statements after reviewing its
factoring receivables and their foreign currency valuations, when preparing the current year financial
statements.

Other Matters
The Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009, which exclude the effects of
the restatement explained in note 2.6, were audited by another independent audit firm. The previous

independent auditor expressed an unqualified opinion in the audit report dated 9 February 2010 on the
financial statements as of 31 December 2009.

Istanbul, 11 March 2011

DRT BAGIMSIZ DENETIM VE SERBEST MUHASEBECI MALI MUSAVIRLIK A.S.
Member of DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU LIMITED

1 Hasan Kihg
Partner, SMMM
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GARANTI FAKTORING HIZMETLERI A.§. STATEMENT OF OFF-BALANCE SHEET

Thousands of TL
Audited Audited
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 31 December 201G 31 December 2009
Notes TE FC TOTAL TL FC TOTAL

L IRREVOCAELE FACTORING OPERATIONS 799,682 - 799,682 303,638 - 303,088
1L REVOCABLE FACTORING OFERATIONS 459,133 173,553 632,685 443,040 103,592 547,032
L. GUARANTEES TAKEN 261 122,188 641,948 764,136 51,695 £03,985 £9§,680
v, GUARANTEES CIVEN 26.2 1,251 - 1,251 1,413 - 1,413
V. COMMITMENTS 6. - 8,971 8,971 - 13,825 13,825
51 Imevocable Commitments - 5,972 8972 - 13825 13.825
52 Revocable Commitments - - - - - -
521  Lease Commilments - - - - - -
5211 Finance Lease Commilments - . - . - .
52.1.2 Operatienal Lease Commitments - - - - - -
522  Other Revpcable Commitments - - - - - -
V1 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 264 405,300 409,291 814,591 147,211 161,338 308,559
61 Derivative Financial Instruments for Hedging Purposes - - - - - -
611 Fair Yalue Hedges - S e . . - .
6.1.2  CashFlow Hedges - - - - - -
613  Net [nvestment Hedges - - - - - -
62 Derivative Fimancial Instruments Held For Trading 405,300 409.291 £14,591 147.221 161338 308,55¢
6.2.1  Forward Buy/Sell Transactions - - - - - -
622  Swap Buy/Sell Transactions 405,360 409,281 814.591 147,221 161,338 308,55%
6.2.3  Options Buy/Sell Transactions - - - - -
6.24  Fulures Buy/Sell Transactions - - - - - -
6.2.5  Other . - - - - -
VIL ITEMS HELD [N CUSTODY 156,209 48,837 305,046 134,037 66,259 301,196

TOTAL OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 21,043,763 1,282,601 3,326,364 1,221,374 849,309 2,073,793

The actempanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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GARANTI FAKTORING HiZMETLERI A.§. INCOME STATEMENT

INCOME STATEMENT

Thousands of TL

Audited

Audited
1 January - 31 December 2009

MNotes 1 January - 31 December 2010 (Restated Note 2.6)
E OPERATING INCOME 1% 22,888 79,396
FACTORING INCOME 92,888 79,396
1.1 Factonng Inferest Income 76,614 63,139
1.1.1  Discomnt 34,556 47,241
112 Other 41,058 15,898
1.2 Factonng Commission Income 16,274 16,257
1.2.1  Discount 10,155 7,300
122 Other 6,110 8748
INCOME FROM FINANCIAL LOANS - -
Intzrest Incoriz From Financial Loasns - -
2 Comnussion Income From Financial Loans - -
LEASE INCOME - -
1.1 Financs Lease Income - -
12 Opzrational Leasz Incoms - -
13 Comnission Income From Leasmg Opemations - -
IL OPERATING EXPENSES (- 1% (22,648) (19,665)
1 Personnzl Expanses (13,270) (11,313
x2 Retiremant Pay Provision Expansss (140) (31}
23 Raszarch and Development Exp=nses - -
24 - Genzml Adnunistrative Expenses (3,238) (8,315
25 Other - -
111 OTHER GPERATING INCOME 20 2,211,504 1,146,617
3l Interest income from Deposits 33934 15,436
32 Interest incomez from Reverse Repurchass Agresmants - -
33 Intarest income from Matkatabls Securitics 515 536
331  Interest Income from Financial Assets Held for Trading 515 536
332 Inferest Income from Financial Assets a1 Fair Value Through Profit and Loss - -
333 Interest Income from Financial Assets Available For Sals - -
334 Interest Income fom Fmancial Assets Held to Matunty - -
34 Dividend Income - -
3.5 Intersst Received from Money Markst Placements 68,492 3301
351  Dinvative Financial Transactions 68,325 3271
352 Other 167 120
36 Forzign Exchange Gains 2,117,454 1,126,983
37 Other 1,109 281
v, FENANCIAL EXPENSES () 21 (73,174) {60,412}
4.1 Interast Expansz on Funds Bommowed (72,543} {59,470)
42 Intersst Expense on Factoring Payables - -
43 Fmancs Lzase Expense - -
44 Intzr=st Expanse on Sscuritiss Issusd - E -
4.5 Ctther Interest Expenses - ’ -
46 Other Fzas and Commissions (631} / {942}
V. SPECIFIC PROVISICN FOR NON-PERFORMING RECEIVABLES () 22 65 . 3,791)
VL OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES () 23 (2,202,79%) (1,132,630)
6.1 Imypairment on Marketable Securitizs (=) - -
6.1.1  Financial Assetsat Far Value Through Profit and Loss . .
612  Financial Asssts Available For Sale - -
613 Financial Assets Held to Maturity - -
62 Expense from Impairment on Tangible and Intangible Assets - -
621  Impatrment on Tangibls Assets - -
622  Impaiment on Assets Held for Sale and Discontinned Cperations - -
623  Imphimsnt on Goodivill - -
624  Impaiment on Intangible Assals - -
625  Impaiment on Subsidianies, Associates and Joint Ventures - -
63 Losses from Denvative Financial Trnsactions (83,634) (4,619)
64 Foreign Exchange Losses (2.119,147) (1,127,528)
65 Other 41:] (503)
¥IL. NET OPERATING INCOME 5,206 2,497
VIII. AMOUNT IN EXCESS RECORDED AS GAIN AFTER MERGER - -
Ix NET MONETARY GAIN/LOSS - -
X PROFIT/LOSS ON CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE TAX 5,206 2,497
XI. TAX PROVISIGN FOR CONTINVING OPERATIONS () 11 (1,067} (2,532)
I3 B Cumrent Tax Charge (003) {5,051}
12 Deferred Tax Charge (+) (164) -
113 Deferred Tax Banafit () - 2519
XII. NET PERIOD PROFIT/LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 4,139 6,965
XIII. INCOME ON DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - -
131 Income on Assets Held for Sale . .
132 Gain on Sals of Associates, Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures - -
133 Other Income on Discontinued Opetations - -
XIV. EXPENSE ON DISCONTENUED OPERATIONS (-} - -
14.1 Expenses on Assets Held for Sale - -
142 Losses on Sale of Associales, Subsidiaies and Joint Ventures - .
143 Other Expenses on Discontinusd Operations - -
XV, PROFIT/LOSS ON DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS BEFORE TAX - -
XVL. TAX PROYISION FOR DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS () - -
16.1 Curent Tax Charge - -
16.2 Defarred Tax Charge (+) - -
163 Dreferred Tax Benefit () - -
XVII. NET PERIOD PROFIT/LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - -
XVIII. NET PERIOD PROFIT/LOSS 4,139 6,965
Eamings Loss Per Share (Kurug psr 1 thousand shares) 24 197.10 331.67

The accemparnying noates form anintegral part of these financial statements.



GARANTI FAKTORING HIZMETLER] A.5. STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS ITEMS ACCOUNTED Fok UNDER EQUITY

Thousands of TL

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS ITEMS ACCOUNTED FOR UNDER EQUITY

Notes

Audited

1 January - 31 December 2010

Audited

1 January - 31 December 2003

6.1
6.2
VIL

VIIL

XL
XIL

ADDITIDNE TO MARKETAELE SECURITIES REVALUATION BIFFERENCES FROM AVAILABLE FOR SALE
FINANCIAL ASSETS

Net change in far value of available for sale investments

‘Net change in fair value of available for gale investments (Transfer to Profit/Loss)

TANGIBLE ASSETS REVALUATION DIFFERENCES

INTANGIBLE ASSETS REVALUATION DIFFERENCES

FOREIGN EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES ON FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

FROFIT LOSS FROM DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FOR CASH FLOW HEDGE PURPOSES
Profit'Loss fiom derivative financial instruments for cash flow hedge pwrposes (Effective portion of fair value differences)

The porticn reclassified and presented in the income statement

PROFIT LOSS FROM DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMERTS FOR HEDGE OF NET INVESTMENRT IN FOREIGN
OPERATIONS

ProfitLoss from defvauve financial instraments for hedge of net investment in foreipn operations (Effective portien of fair value
differences})

The portion reclassified and presented in the income statement

THE EFFECT OF CORRECTIONS OF ERRORS AND CHANGES IN ACCOUTING POLICIES

OTHER FROFIT LOSS ITEMS ACCOUNTED UNDER EQUITY DUE TO TAS
DEFERRED TAX OF YALUATION DIFFERENCES

TOTAL NET PROFIT LOSS ACCOUNTED UNDER EQUITY (I+1I+... +1X)
PROFIT LOSS FOR THE PERIOD

TOTAL PROFIT LOSS ACCOUNTED FOR THE PERIOD (X=XI)

The accompanylng notes form an Integral part of these financial statements,
s




E]
TUIALLARLS (@l #5370 26 [@ITSLN LR 110} F310 BUAUERLGID gL

1oz T - - 1L &TE B - - BrT - P Tz TLANHLANF AN+ T LT BOTEd H[) 30 B 910K 1% saevng
" - - - 596'% {9a9 - - - - - - RO £l
. . . . P N R ar . . B3RS0 SUpRRTL, 7 L1
. . . - - - - - - . - - ALt
. . - 3] {5989 - - - BEr - - - S0l uPfUALIR Il TAX
GELT - . . - &'t - - - . - - e ijard ot paled poamy g
. . . . - - - - B . - wme| papruplequy  AX
. . . . . R . . . . . SpUeq APVANSY ALY
. . . . - - - - - - . . . yesrder wypied o1 nwsmpindps voyegu  mx
- . - - {7 - - - - . ozl aemy g X
. . . N R R R R R . - - sesnurpdey X
. . . ) . . . . . . . . . P T L e
. . . - - - R - - . saran o puredig wiadg paymset dungy 31
. . . . . . R R R R . . UL UoVNNLL,  TiIA
. . . . . . - - - . - - SAIATS AN WO SARIIIWOHNEATY A
- . . - - - - - - . . LOOITIA- (O] PUN SATApEL ‘AP oL [0 Gl sltey  TA
- . . . - . . . - - - - aaie aque) wo agdmis woRNUNAYY A
- . . . R R R . . . . . SO a[qupOpNI U snkerek HeEL{RATY AL
. R . - - . . - - - - . stonerada tRlo) W UL P Ja SpA] Tg
- - . . - - . - B B . - sfugaspye] |
. . . . . . - - - B R . . L TEWH M
- R . . . - - - - - . . [
Jattad 3y Sy saitey
sk - - - k591 969 - - - o6 - T 08761 i popted tontd sipy o Juputag ) 4u dsuteqeg 1
o}
ATAZ A+qWIzIH FE ~ Ly |
Cotdid INTHAND
BLESR : - - TrsaT S9e'e - - - aLs - e OHTAL (MOGTILAKHTAX ™ tAIMIE o d 4 Jo pma dugy g axirapegg
- - - - - - - - - - - - mpa esl
M - - Lread 4TI - - - Lt - - - [LYCTEIRSHTTH L S Y]
- - - - - - . - B - . - peptdg 141
g - - wrr (o5t - - - L - - - ORIHI LT XIX
289 - - - - 596 . . - - . - 101 1oad Jaus paped NI AN
. R R . . . . R R . . SEvOR PR RE  TIAX
- - - . . - - - - - WO SIAATY LAY
. . - . . . . - . . oifdua 0 ped o) dusutsufpe Usi|T  AX
. - - WTE'D . . - - - azi'y ARy A ALY
. . R . K . . R - . . . - smanurppdey  TIX
- - . - . - - - B APHEY o USRS TRI ppUT IUNLY X
. . R . . . . . - B o preadsp vy papuuat odungy X
. R . . . . . . . - . - AR wogL, X
- . - . . - . - - - - SORNU SUEYIN Ud SALH UepUNIAY X]
. . - . . . . . - . SN A PUEO] PN SN YP03N [0 LINgE SO [TLA
. - - - . . . . - - . - aATIMT DA sen adunY, A
- . B . - . . . . . SR DL S[EHY IV UG FALHI Uofysu$ASY  Th
- - - - . . - . . . - - - suaneesdo whiaiay oy puannsavm o BRIl 7%
- - - - - - - . - . - - Apqaoyed 1§
R R . . . . . . . . QALY IR A
. R . . . . . . R . adull  ar
pavad s I cadwapy
SI5R - - - T L'k - - - 2 - (1354 096'L) 1410 poped oy go Jupiindeq ays yu satiafuq papfpy
- . - - . . - . . . . N . savned dmpmezse wr satieya ja payg 27
(rs - - - - risn - . - . - - {97 a0} seonnaLes e Ay 17
(4] - - - - F13'T - - - - - - - B SVL3od g9 dprmun cuoppaante ) n
LTF T - - - ot Tao'L - - - L] - e (193] FAl {parredss fruapuad) popad ot yo Jupradag gy 1 sasungeg T
(pammy)
GAOE MUK TE ~ Krenuep T
dordid yordd
ity S s i FO SAiiEY Gt G Y S G BT fijaig g T e e o ey
PITURUOISKT PR INY 50} PR sanyg sweg | wanutifeaay sty vanenpary | opaemomosy) | gy Arumeensg | Loy wanmgang g Taumsnfpy vanugug
MOSE S8 U saazasay s o aaet agmg 7 g angg
vanEsRATY |IpEmIY apqeiEaTy
R

ALIMNDI SHTUTOHTAVIS '§'Y I LLAWZAL INEOINYA LINVEVE




GARANTI FAKTORING HIZMETLERI A.§. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

Thousands of TL

Audited

Audited
1 Janwagy - 31 December 2008

Notes | | January - 31 December 2010 (Restated Note 2.6}
A.  CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1.1 Operaung profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities 4,174 9,367
1.1.1 Interest leasing income received 72,190 65,793
1.1.2 Leasing expenses (696} (396)
1.1.3 Dmadends recerved - -
1 1.4 Fees and commissions recejved 18 16,274 16,257
1.1.5 Other incoms - -
1.1.6 Collections fiom previoush written off receivables 8 1,007 315
L.1.7 Payments to persenne] and service suppliers (21,104} (19,663)
1.1.8 Taxes paid 11 (5,114} (2,361)
1.1.9 Other (58,383} (50,578)
1.2 Changes in operaling assets and liabilities (I56,571) 172,548
.1 Net (increase} decrease m factormg; receivables (579,865} {205,276)
1 Net (increase) decrease in loans - -
I Net (inerease) decrease in leasing receivables - -
2 Net (nerense) decrease m other Assels {1,501} (299)
3 Net mcrease (decrease) in factoring pavables 1,328 (1,033)
2.3 Net increase (decrease) in leasing receivables - -
.24 Netincrease (decrenase) in funds botrewed 423,322 378,213
2.5 Netincrease (decrease) in due payables - -
2.6 Netcrease (decrease) in other liabilities 145 943
1 Net gash provided from operating activities (152,397) 181,915
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
21 Cash paid for purchase of joint venties, associales and subsidiases - - -
2.2 Cashobtained from sale of jomt ventures, associates and subsidiaries - -
2.3 Fixed assets purchases 9 (238) {120)
24  Fixed assets sales - .
25  Cash paid for purchase of nancial assets available for sale - -
2.6  Cash obtamed fiom sale of financial assets available for sale - -
2.7  Cash paid for purchase of financial assets held to maturity - -
28  Cash obtained from sale of financial assets held 10 maturity - -
29  Cther 4,049 19,124
IL Net cash provided from investing activities 3,111 18,934
C.  CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
3.1  Cash obtained from finds borrowed and securities jssned - -
32 Cashused for repayment of Fnds borrowed and securities issued - -
33 Captal mcrease - -
34  Dividends paid - -
3.5 Paymenls for finance leases - -
36  Other - (94z2)
M. Netcash provided from fnancing activities - {942)
IV.  Effect of change in foreign exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents 114 -
V.  Netincrease in cish and cash equivalents (149,172) 199,907
VI.  Cash and cash equivalents al the beginnmng of the period 256,157 56,250
VI Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 2.5 (m) 106,985 256,157

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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GARANTI FAKTORING HIZMETLER] A.$. STATEMENT OF PROFIT DISTRIBUTION

Thousands of TL

Audited

Audited

1 January - 31 Decernber 2009

Notes 1 January - 3t December 2010 (Restated Note 2.6}

L DISTRIBUTION OF CURRENT YEAR INCOME (*) (**)

1.1 Current Period Profit 5,206 09457
12 Taxes And Dues Payvable (-) 1,067 2,532
121 Corporate Tax (Income tax) 903 5.051
122 Income withholding tax - -
123 Othertaxes and dues 164 (2,519)
A, NET PERIOD PROFIT (1.1-1.2) 4,139 6,965
L3 Accurnulated Deficit (-} - -
1.4 First Legal Reserves () - (438)
1.5 Other Statutery Reserves (=) - -
B. NET PERIOD FPROFIT AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION 4,139 6.527

[(A+(1.3+L.4+1.3))

1.6 First Dividend To Sharcholders (-} - -
161  To Owners Of Ordinan: Shares - -
162  To Owners Of Prefemred Stocks - -
163  To Owners Of Preferred Stocks (Preemptive rights) - -
1.6.4  ToProfit Sharing Bonds - -
165  To Holders Of Profit And Loss Sharing Certificates - -
1.7 Dividends To Personnel (-) - -
1.8 Dividends To Board Of Directors (-} - -
1.9 Second Dividend To Shareholders (-) - -
191 To Owners Of Ordinary Shares - -
182  To Owners Of Preferred Stocks - -
1.93  To Owners Of Preferred Stocks (Preemptive rights) - -
154  To Profit Sharing Bonds - -
195  To Holders Of Profit And Loss Sharing Certificates - -
110 Second Legal Reserves (-) - -
1.11 Statutory Reserves (=) - -
1.12 Extraordinary Reserves - -
1.12 Other Reserves - -
1.14 Special Funds - -
II. DISTRIBUTICN OF RESERVES
2.1 Appropriated Reserves - -
2.2 Second Legal Reserves (-) - -
2.3 Dividends To Shareholders (-) - -
231  ToOwners Of Ordinary Shares - -
232 To Owners Of Preferred Stocks - -
233  To Owners Of Preferred Stocks (Preemptive rights) - -
2.34  To Profit Sharing Bonds - -
2.3.5  ToHolders Of Profit And Loss Sharing Certificates - -
24 Dividends Te Personnel (-) - _
23 Dividends To Board Cf Directors {-) - -
I EARNINGS PER SHARE

31 To Owners Of Crdinary Shares - -
32 To Owners Cf Crdinary Shares (% ) - -
33 To Owners Of Preferred Stocks - -
3.4 To Owners Of Preferred Stocks (% ) - -
IV. DIVIDEND PER SHARE
4.1 To Owners Of Crdinary Shares - -
4.2 To Owners Of Ordinary Shares (% ) - -
43 To Owners Of Preferred Stocks - -
4.4 To Owners Of Preferred Stocks( % ) - -

(*)The profit distribution decision will be made in the General Assembly Meeting. The General Assembly Meeting has not been made as of the date of this report

(**} In accordance with the decision made at the General Assembly Meeting held on 28 April 2010, the Company has decided to transfer TL 1,720 thousand of 2009°s profit to the
capital; issue new shares and distribute them as bonus shares to the shareholders.

The accompanymg notes form an mtegral part of these financial statements.
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GARANTI FAKTORING HiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2010

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of "TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

1

ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY

Aktif Finans Faktoring Hizmetleri A.S. was incorporated on 4 September 1990 in Turkey to
provide factoring services to industrial and commercial firms. The commercial title of Aktif
Finans Faktoring Hizmetleri A.S. was changed to Garanti Faktoring Hizmetleri A.S. (“the
Company”) with the approval of the General Assembly held on 27 March 2002. The Company
offered its shares to public in 1994 with the authorization of Capital Markets Board (“CMB”).
The Company operates in accordance with Capital Markets Law and the Communiqué on the
“The Establishment and Main Activities of Finance Leasing, Factoring and Financing
Companies” made by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency (“BRSA”™).

Information about the Company’s shareholders and respective shares are as follows:

31 December Shareholding 31 December Shareholding

2010 (%) 2009 (%)

Tiirkiye Garanti Bankas: A.S. 17,187 81.84 15,780 81.84
Tiirkiye Ihracat Kredi Bankas1 A.S. - 2,053 9.78 1,885 9.78
Publicly Trading 1,760 8.38 1,615 8.38
Capital : 21,000 100.00 19,280 100.00

The shareholding of Tiirkiye Garanti Bankasit A.S. as of 31 December 2010 and 31 December
2009 is 55.40% and 55.40%, respectively. Tirkive Garanti Bankas: A.S. has obtained the
remaining shares by 26.44% and 26.44% from Istanbul Stock Exchange.

The Company has 155 employees as at 31 December 2010 (31 December 2009: 136).

The Company is registered in Turkey and operates at the following address:

Eski Biiytkdere Caddesi Ayazaga Kdy Yolu No:23 34396 Maslak / Istanbul.

The Company provides factoring services substantially in one geographical segment (Turkey).
Dividends Payable

As of the report date there is no dividend distribution decision made. In accordance with the
decision made at the General Assembly Meeting held on 28 April 2010, the Company has
decided to transfer TL 1,720 thousand of 2009°s profit to the capital; issue new shares and
distribute them as bonus shares to the shareholders.

Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors based

~on the Board of Directors decision dated 11 March 2011. The General Assembly has the

authority to change the financial statements,



GARANTI FAKTORING HIZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2010

{(Amounts are expressed in Tuvkish Lira (thousands of "'TL "} unless otherwise indicated.)

2

2.1

2.1.1.

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Basis of Presentation
Accounting Standards Applied

The Company maintains its books of account in accordance with the Turkish Accounting
Standards applying the Communiqué on “The Application of Uniform Charts of Accounts and its
Guide Book In Connection to the Establishment and Main Activities of Finance Leasing,
Factoring and Financing Companies and The Format of the Financial Statements for Public
Presentation” published in the Official Gazette No: 26525 on 17 May 2007,

The Company also applies the requirements of the Communiqué on the “Principles and
Procedures of Rececivable Allowances to be Provided by Finance Leasing, Factoring and
Financing Companies”; which is prepared based on the Communiqué on “The Application of
Uniform Charts of Accounts and its Guide Book in Connection to the Establishment and Main
Activities of Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies” published in the Official
Gazette No:26315 on 10 October 2006; published in the Official Gazette No: 26588 on 20 July
2007.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the revaluation
of certain financial instruments. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for assets.

Preparation of Financial Statements in Hyperinflationary Periods

Restatement adjustments have been made to compensate for the effect of changes in the general
purchasing power of the Turkish Lira, in accordance with Turkish Accounting Standards on
“Preparation of Financial Statements in Hyperinflationary Periods™ (“TAS 29”) for the financial
statements prepared until 31 December 2004. BRSA issued a circular on 28 April 2005 stating
that the indicators requiring the application of inflation accounting ceased to exist; consequently
inflation accounting was not applied in the financial statements after [ January 2005.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Changes in Accounting Policies

Changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively and the prior period financial

statements are restated accordingly. There is no significant change in the accounting policies of
the Company in the current year.

10



GARANTI FAKTORING HIiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2010

{Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL") unless otherwise indicated,)

2.
23

2.4

2.4.1.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

If the changes in accounting estimates relate to only one period, changes are applied in the
current period but if changes in estimates relate to future periods, changes are applied both in the
current and following periods prospectively.

Reporting Standards in accordance with the preparation of financial statements, management,
policies and the implementation of the reported assets, liabilities, income and expenditure to take
decisions that affect the amounts, to make estimates and assumptions required. Actual results may
differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed constantly,
Accounting estimates are updates, update the affected period, and these updates are recognized in
subsequent periods. The main notes used in the estimates are as follows:

Note 4 — Financial Assets at fair value through profit and loss
Note 7 — Factoring receivables

Note 9 — Tangible Assets

Note 10 — Intangible Assets

Note 11 — Tax Assets and Liabilities

Note 16 — Provisions

The Company has not been a change in accounting estimates in the current year,

Significant accounting errors are applied retrospectively and reorganized the prior period
financial statements. The Company has restated its prior period financial statements as explained
in detail, in Note 2.6.

Adoption of New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standards
New and revised standards applied by the Company:

There is no standard or interpretation change that affects the Company’s reported results, balance
sheet, presentation or disclosures significantly as at 31 December 2010.

2.4.2. Standards and interpretations those are effective as at 31 December 2010 with no impact on the

Company’s December 2010 financial statements:

IFRIC 17, “Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners”, is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009. The Company does not apply this interpretation, as it has not
made any non-cash distributions.

IFRIC 18, “Transfers of assets from customers”, is effective for transfer of assets on or after 1
July 2009. The Company docs not apply this interpretation, as it has not transferred any assets
from customers.

“Additional exemptions for first-time adopters™ (Amendment to IFRS 1) was issued in July 2009,
The amendments are required to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2010. The Company does not apply this interpretation, as it is an existing IFRS preparer.

IFRS 2, “Share-based Payments — Cash-settled Share Based Payment Arrangements™ is effective

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010. The Company does not apply this
interpretation, as the Company does not have share-based payment plans.

11



GARANTI FAKTORING HiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2010
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

2,

24
2.4.2.

2.4.3,

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

Adoption of New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

Standards and interpretations those are effective as at 31 December 2010 with no impact on the
Company’s December 2010 financial statements (cont’d) :

Amendments to IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations clarify
that all the assets and liabilities of a subsidiary should be classified as held for sale when the
Entity is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of that subsidiary, regardless of
whether the Entity will retain a non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale. The
Company does not apply this amendment as. it has no subsidiary.

International Financial Reporting Standards in relation to the improvements made in 2009, posted
on April 2009. Improvements in standards and interpretations are described below include: IFRS
2 Share-based Payment, IFRS 5 Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, IFRS 8
Operating segments, JIAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, IAS 7 Cash Flow Statement,
IAS 17 Financial Leases, IAS 18 Revemue, JAS 36 Impairment of Assets, IAS 38 Intangible
Assets, IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, IFRIC 9 Reassessment of
Embedded Derivatives Instruments, IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation. The effective dates vary standard by standard but most are effective 1 January 2010.

Standards that are issued but not yet effective and have not been early adopted and amendments
and interpretations to the current standards

IFRS 1 (amendments) Firsi-time Adoption of IFRS — Additional Exemptions

Amendments to IFRS 1 which are effective for annual periods on or after 1 July 2010 provide
limited exemption for first time adopters to present comparative IFRS 7 fair value disclosures.

On 20 December, IFRS 1 is amended toprovide relief for firsi-time adopters of IFRSs from
having to reconstruct transactions that occurred before their date of transition to IFRSs
and provide guidance for entities emerging from severe hyperinflation cither to resume presenting
IFRS financial statements or to present IFRS financial statements for the first time.

Such amendments will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

These amendments are not relevant to the Company, as it is an existing IFRS preparer.
IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”

In October 2010, IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures is amended by IASB as part of its
comprehensive review of off balance sheet activities. The amendments will allow users of
financial statements to improve their understanding of transfer transactions of financial assets,
including understanding the possible effects of any risks that may remain with the entity that
transferred the assets. The amendments also require additional disclosures if a disproportionate
amount of transfer transactions are undertaken around the end of a reporting period. The
amendment will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

12



GARANTI FAKTORING HIZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2010

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL"} unless otherwise indicated.)

2.

24

243

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
Adoption of New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

Standards that are issued but not yet effective and have not been early adopted and amendments
and interpretations to the cuwrrent standards (cont’d)

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement ™

In November 2009, the first part of IFRS 9 relating to the classification and measurement of
financial instruments was issued by International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™). IFRS 9
will ultimately replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The
standard requires an entity to classify its financial assets on the basis of the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset, and subsequently measure the financial assets as either at amortized cost or at fair
value. This new standard is mandatory for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

IAS 12 “Income Tax”

IAS 12 "Income Tax" standard was amended on December 2010. IAS 12 requires an entity to
measure the deferred tax relating to an asset depending on whether the entity expects to recover
the carrying amount of the asset through use or sale. It can be difficult and subjective to assess
whether recovery will be through use or through sale when the asset is measured using the fair
value model in TAS 40 Investment Property. The amendment provides a practical solution to the
problem by introducing a presumption that recovery of the carrying amount will, normally be, be
through sale. The amendment will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2012.

TAS 24 (2009) ‘Related Party Disclosures’

In November 2009, IAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures” was revised. The revision to the standard
provides government-related entities with a partial exemption from the disclosure requirements.
The revised standard is mandatory for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.

IAS 32 (Amendments) Financial Instruments: Presentation and IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements

The amendments to IAS 32 and IAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
February 2010. The amendments address the accounting for rights issues (rights, options or
warrants) that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the issuer.
Previously, such rights issues were accounted for as derivative liabilitics. However, the
amendment requires that, provided certain conditions are met, such rights issues are classified as
equity regardless of the currency in which the exercise price is denominated.

13



GARANTI FAKTORING HiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2010

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

2.

24

243,

2.5

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
Adoption of New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

Standards that are issned but not vet effective and have not been early adopted and amendments
and interpretations to the current standards (cont’d)

IFRIC 14 (Amendments) Pre-payment of a Minimum Funding Requirement

Amendments to IFRIC 14 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.
The amendments affect entities that are required to make minimum funding contributions to a
defined benefit pension plan and choose to pre-pay those contributions. The amendment requires
an asset to be recognized for any surplus arising from voluntary pre-payments made. The
Company does not expect any impact of the adoption of this amendment on the financial
statements.

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

IFRIC 19 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010. IFRIC 19 addresses
only the accounting by the entity that issues equity instruments in order to settle, in full or part, a
financial Hability.

May 2010, Annual Improvements

Further to the above amendments and revised standards, the IASB has issued Amnnual
Improvements to IFRSs in May 2010 that cover mainly 7 standards/interpretations: IFRS 1 Firs¢-
time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards; TFRS 3 Business Combinations;
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures; IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements; IAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements; 1AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting and IFRIC
13 Customer Loyalty Programmes. With the exception of amendments to IFRS 3 and IAS 27
which are effective on or after 1 July 2010, all other amendments are effective on or after 1
January 2011 with early adoption option.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Revenue

Factoring service income is composed of collected and accrued interest income and commission
income earned from advance payments made to customers.

A specific percentage amount, obtained from invoice total subject to factoring transactions,
constitutes commission income.

Dividend revenue from investments is recognized when the shareholders’ rights to receive
payment have been established.

Other interest income is accrued based on the effective interest rate which equals the estimated cash
flows to net book value of the related asset.

14



GARANTI FAKTORING HIZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2010

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL”) unless otherwise indicated)

2.

2.5

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Financial Instruments
Financial Assets

All financial assets are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs except for those
financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair
value and recognized or derecognized on a trade date where the purchase or sale of a financial
asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe
established by the market concerned.

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets as ‘at fair
value through profit or loss’ (FVITPL}, ‘held-to-maturity investments’, ‘available-for-sale’ (AFS)
financial assets and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset, or where appropriate a shorier period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for financial assets other than those financial
assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading and
financial assets designated under this category upon initial recognition. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term or
achieved more relevant accounting measurement. Derivatives are also categorized as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges.

Credit linked notes are classified as financial assets held for trading and measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. They are measured at amortized cost when
their fair value cannot be reliably measured. Amortized cost is calculated using effective interest
rate method.

Held ro maturity investments

Investments in debt securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that
the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity investments. Held-to-maturity investments are recorded at amortized cost using the
effective interest method less impairment, with revenue recognized on an effective yield basis.

15



GARANTI FAKTORING HiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2010

(Amounts are expressed in Twrkish Lira (thousands of “TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {cont’d)

b. Financial Instruments (cont’d)

Financial Assets (cont’d)

Available- for- sale financial assets

Quoted equity investments and quoted certain debt securities held by the Company that are traded
in an active market are classified as being available- for-sale financial assets and are stated at fair
value. Investments in unquoted equity investments that are not traded in an active market but are
also classified as available-for-sale financial assets and stated at cost since their value can’t be
reliably measured. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve with the exception
of impairment losses, interest calculated using the effective interest method, and foreign exchange
gains and losses on monetary assets, which are recognized in profit or loss. Where the investment
is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cuamulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the investments revalnation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognized in profit or loss when the
Company’s right to receive the dividends is established.

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary assets denominated in a foreign currency is
determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting
period. The foreign exchange gains and losses that are recognized in profit or loss are determined
based on the amortized cost of the monetary asset. Other foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Factoring receivables and other receivables

Factoring receivables and other receivables are stated at fair value at initial recognition,
Subsequent to initial recognition, all receivables except for factoring receivables are carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Factoring transactions are accounted for at
carrying amounts in subsequent reporting periods. The Company management believes that
carrying amounts of factoring receivables approximate to their fair values since amortization is
taken into account at initial recognition.

Effective from 1 Jammary 2008, in accordance with the Communiqué (No: 26588) on the
“Principles and Procedures of Receivable Allowances To Be Provided By Financial Leasing,
Factoring and Financing Companies™ issued on 20 July 2007, special provision rate allocated for
the factoring receivables considering their guarantees are as follows: 20%, at a minimum, for
factoring receivables overdue more than 90 days not exceeding 180 days; 50%, at a minimum, for
factoring receivables overdue more than 180 days not exceeding 360 days; and 100%, at a
minimum, for factoring receivables overdue more than 1 year. The Company allocates 100%
provision for all doubtful factoring receivables which do not have strong collaterals without
considering the time intervals above. Other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market are also classified in this category. These receivables are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method less any impairment.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Financial Instruments (cont’d)

Financial Assets (cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss are subject to impairment
testing at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment of
financial asset or financial asset group. An entity shall assess at each balance sheet date whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred afier the initial
recognition of the asset. That loss event or events must also have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets. For loans and receivables, the
amount of impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by impairment loss directly for all financial
assets except factoring receivables, When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Changes in allowance accounts are recognized in profit or loss.

Specific provision is allocated for factoring receivables in accordance with the Communiqué (No:
26588) on the “Principles and Procedures of Receivable Allowances To Be Provided By Financial
Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies™ issued on 20 July 2007.

With the exception of available for sale equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognized.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly
liquid investments which their maturities are three months or less from date of acquisition and that
are readily convertible fo a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. The carrying value of these assets approximates their fair value.

Derivative financial instruments and hedee accounting

The Company’s activitics expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign exchange
rates and interest rates. The Company uses derivative financial instruments (primarily foreign
currency forward contracts) to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations
relating to certain firm commitments and forecasted transactions. Derivatives are initially
recognized at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. Derivatives are designated as
held for trading and resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss immediately as the
derivatives do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting despite they provide economic hedge.
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2.5

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Financial Instruments (cont’d)

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instruments. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted

for specific financial Habilities and equity instruments are set cut below.

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss
or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value at initial recognition,
and remeasured at fair value as of the balance sheet date at each reporting period. The changes in
fair value are recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of
transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, with interest expense recognized on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Tangible Assets

Tangible assets are carried at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Tangible assets are depreciated principally on a straight-line basis considering the expected useful
lives. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each
year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Expenses for the maintenance of tangible assets are normally recorded in profit and loss
statement. Gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of tangible asset is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognized in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Intangible Assets

Intangible Fixed Assets Acquired

Intangible assets acquired separately are reported at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is charged on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end
of each annual reporting period with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Computer Software

Acquired computer sofiware licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
and bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortized over their useful lives,

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programs are recognized as
an expense as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the development of identifiable and
unique software products controlled by the Company, and that will probably generate economic
benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognized as intangible fixed assets. Costs include
the software development employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.
Computer software development costs recognized as assets are amortized over their estimated
useful lives (3 — 5 years).

Impairment of Assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell or value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.

Retirement Pay Provision

Under the Turkish law and union agreements, lump sum payments are made to employees
retiring or involuntarily leaving the Company. Such payments are considered as being part of
defined retirement benefit plan as per Intemational Accounting Standard No. 19 (revised)
“Employeé Benefits” (“IAS 19™).

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that the Company will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (cont’d)

Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
Borrowing Costs

All borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
Effects of Changes in Exchange Rates

The financial statements of the Company are presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates. The results and financial position of the Company is
expressed in thousands of TL, which is the functional currency of the Company, and the

presentation currency for the financial statements.

The foreign currency exchange rates used by the Company as of 31 December 2010 and 31
December 2009 are as follows:

31 December 2010 31 December 2009

USD 1.5460 1.5057
EURO 2.0491 2.1603
GEBEP 2.3886 2.3892

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than TL
(foreign currencies) are recorded at the prevailing exchange rates at the transaction date. At each
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when fair

" value is determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are not retranslated.
Earnings per Share

In Turkey, companies can raise their share capital by distributing “Bonus Shares” to shareholders
from retained eamnings. In computing earnings per share, such “Bonus Share” distributions are
treated as issued shares. Accordingly, the retrospective effect for those share distributions is taken
into consideration in determining the weighted-average number of shares outstanding used in this
computation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Subsequent Events

Events after balance sheet date comprise any event between the balance sheet date and the date of
authorization of the financial statements for publication, even if any event after balance sheet date
occurred subsequent to an announcement on the Company’s profit or following any financial
information disclosed to public.

The Company adjusts the amounts recognized in its financial statements to reflect adjusting
events after the balance sheet date if such subsequent events arise. :

Finance Lease
Lease- The Company as Lessee

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the Company at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lesser is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance costs are
charged to the profit or loss in accordance with the Company’s general policy on borrowing costs
as detailed above.

Rental payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant leases.

Segmental Information

No segmental information is disclosed as the Company provides only factoring services and only
in Turkey.

Taxation on Income

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or

deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Taxation on Income (cont’d)

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit, and are accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)} of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Company is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only
recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future. '

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current {ax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a

net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognized as an expense or income in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items credited or debited directly to equity, in which case the tax is also recognized
directly in equity, or where they arise from the initial accounting for a business combination. In
the case of a business combination, the tax effect is taken into account in calculating goodwill or
determining the excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Statement of Cash Flows

In statement of cash flows, cash flows are classified according to operating, investment and
finance activities.

Cash flows from operating activities reflect cash flows mainly generated from factoring
operations of the Company.

Cash flows from investment activities express cash used in investment activities (direct
investments and financial investments) and cash flows generated from investment activities of the
Company.

Cash flows relating to finance activities express sources of financial activities and payment
schedules of the Company.

31 December 31 December

2010 2009

Cash / Foreign Currency 1 -
Banks 106,984 256,157
106,985 256,157
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2.

2.6.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

Comparative Information and Restatement of Prior Period Financial Statements

In order to give a true understanding of the financial position and performance trends, the
Company's financial statements are prepared comparatively with the prior period. When the
presentation or classifications in the current year financial statements are changed, the prior
period financial statements are reclassified accordingly in order to provide comparative

information.

In the current year the Company has reviewed the factoring receivables portfolio and their
foreign currency valuations and has restated the opening balances in the financial statements for
the years 2010 and 2009 in accordance with IAS 8. The effects of the restatements to the prior
period financial statements are summarized below:

Balance Sheet Effect:
Previously
Reported Restated
1 January 2009 Restaternent 1 Januwary 2009
Factoring Receivables 653,096 (3,143) 649,953
Deferred Tax Assets 231 629 860
Retained Earnings/

(Accumulated Losses) 20,722 (2,514) 18,208
Total Assets : 750,336 (2,514) 747,822
Total Shareholders’ Equity 41,427 2,514) 38,913

Previously
Reported Restated
1 January 2010 Restatement 1 January 2010
Factoring Receivables 850,740 (7,004) 343,736
Deferred Tax Assets 1,979 1,400 3,379
Retained Earnings/

(Accumulated Iosses) 19,055 (2,514) 16,541
Net Profit / (Loss) for the
Period 10,055 (3,090) 6,965
Total Assets 1,138,517 (5,604) 1,132,913
Total Sharcholders’ Equity 51,482 (5,604) 45,878
Income Statement Effect

Previously Reported Restated

1 January- 1 January-

31 December 2009 Restatement 31 December 2009

Factoring Income 82,050 (2,654) 79,396
Foreign Exchange Loss (1,126,321) (1,207) (1,127,528)
Deferred Tax Benefit 1,748 771 2,519
Net Profit / (Loss) for the Period 10,055 (3,090) 6,965
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3 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Details of cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 are as

follows:
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
TL FC TL FC
Cash / Foreign Currency 1 - - -
1 - - -

4 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS
4.1 Financial Assets Held for Trading

Details of the Company’s credit linked notes that are classified as financial assets held for trading
as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 are as follows:

31 December 2010 31 December 2009
TL FC TL FC
Turkish Corporate Bonds - 9,008 - 13,694
- 9,008 - 13,694
_ 31 December 2010
Carrying Interest Rate
Amount Nominal (%) Maturity
Turkish Corporate
Bonds
USD 8,603 8,589 2.35 2013
EURO ‘ 405 383 9.50 2011
9,008 8,972
31 December 2009
Carrying Interest Rate
Amount Nominal (%) Maturity
Turkish Corporate
Bonds
USD 11,731 11,711 2.33 2013
EURO 1,963 2,114 3.99-9.50 2010-2011
13,694 13,825
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4 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS (Cont’d)

4.2 Derivative Financial Assets Held for Trading

Derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value. Increase in fair value is classified as

derivative financial assets held for trading while decrease in fair value is classified as derivative
financial liabilities held for trading.

Details of derivative financial assets held for trading that arise from currency swap buy-sell
agreements as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 are as follows:

31 December 2010 31 December 2009
TL FC TL FC
Derivative Financial Assets Held for
Trading 303 - 882 -
303 - 882 -

4.3  Derivative Financial Liabilities Held for Trading

Details of derivative financial liabilities held for trading that arise from currency swap buy-sell
agreements as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 are as follows:

31 December 2010 31 December 2009
TL FC TL FC
Derivative Financial Liabilities
Held for Trading 311 - 68 -
311 - 68 -

5. BANKS

Details of banks as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 are as follows:

31 December 2010 31 December 2009
TL FC TL FC
Demand deposits 3,814 3,170 730 5,427
Time deposits 101,349 - 250,827 -
105,163 3,170 251,557 5,427

Time deposits are composed of bank placements with maturities shorter than 3 months, Interest
rate for the TL time deposits is 9% (31 December 2009: 10%-11%). There is no restriction on
bank deposits as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009.

The bank balances, excluding income accruals, with original maturities shorter than 3 months
which form the basis of cash flows statement amounts to TL 106,985 thousand as at 31 December
2010 (31 December 2009: TL 256,157 thousand).
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6. FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE

Financial assets available for sale are composed of unquoted equity share investments as at 31
December 2010 and 31 December 2009. These investments are stated at their acquisition cost in the
accompanying financial statements as the fair values of these investments cannot be reliably

measured,
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
Carrying Value Carrying Value

Share Share
Percentage Percentage
TL FC {%) TL FC (%)

Garanti Finansal Kiralama
AS. 4,155 - 5.86 4,155 - 5.86

International Factors
Group SC - 13 0.25 - 13 0.25
4,155 13 4,155 13

7. FACTORING RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Fuactoring Receivables

Details of factoring receivables as at 31 December 2010, 31 December 2009 and 31 December

2008 are as follows:

31 December 2009 31 December 2008

31 December 2010 (Restated Note 2.6) (Restated Note 2.6)
TL ¥C TL FC TL FC
Domestic factoring receivables 1,251,372 - 746,125 542,085 -
Export and import factoring - 114,388

receivables 7,443 173,553 2 103,992

Uneamed interest income (5,070) - (6,383) - (6,520) -
Factoring receivables, net 1,253,745 173,553 739,744 103,992 535,565 114,388

Factoring receivables with revised payment plan amounts to TL 2,425 thousand as at 31 December
2010 (31 December 2009: None). The Company has received a mortgage with a fair value of TL

2,245 thousand for these factoring receivables.

The Company has no material overdue factoring receivable other than mentioned above.

Fuactoring Payables
Details of short term factoring payables as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 are as
follows:
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
TL FC TL FC
Factoring payables 1,489 155 298 18
1,489 155 298 18

Factoring payables represent the amounts of collections on behalf of factoring customers but have

not transferred to the factoring customer accounts yet.
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8. NON-PERFORMING RECEIVABLES

Details of the Company’s non-performing factoring receivables and the provisions allocated for

them as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 are as follows:

31 December 2010 31 December 2009
TL FC TL FC
Non-performing factoring
receivables 13,723 - 14,001 -
Specific provisions (6,927) - (6,369) -
6,796 - 7,632 -

Aging of non- performing factoring receivables and specific provision allocated for them as at 31

December 2010 and 31 December 2009 are as follows:

31 December 2010 ‘ 31 December 2009

Total non -performing Provision Total non-performing Provision
factoring receivables allocated factoring receivables allocated

Overdue for 1-3 months - - 55 55
Overdue for 3-6 months - - 976 976
Overdue for 6-12 months 93 53 1,252 1,252
Overdue for 1 year and over 13,630 6,874 11,718 4,086

13,723 6,927 14,001 6,369

Amount of collaterals received for non-performing factoring receivables that is limited with the

exposure is TL 9,946 thousand (31 December 2009; TL 9,927 thousand).

The movement of provision for non-performing factoring receivables is as follows:

31 December 31 December

2010 2009

Balance as at 1 January 6,369 1,911

Provision provided for the period 565 4,105
Amount transferred from generic to specific

provision during the period 1,000 668

Collections during the period (1,007) (315)

Balance at the end of the year 6,927 6,369
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9,

TANGIBLE ASSETS .

The movement of tangible assets for the period ended as at 31 December 2010 is as follows:

1 January 31 December
2010 Additions Disposals 2010
Acquisition Cost

Furniture and fixtures 2,603 805 - 3,408
Vehicles 26 - )] 19
Leasehold improvements 958 133 - 1,091
3,587 938 ()] 4,518

Accumulated Depreciation
Furniture and fixture 1,945 320 - 2,265
Vehicles 7 5 (7 5
Leasehold improvements 819 94 - 013
2,771 419 ()] 3,183
Net book value , 816 1,335

The movement of tangible assets for the period ended as at 31 December 2009 is as follows:

1 January 31 December
2009 Additions Disposals 2009
Acquisition Cost

Furniture and fixtures 2,457 146 - 2,603
Vehicles 7 19 - 26
Leasehold improvements 933 25 - 958
3,397 190 - 3,587

Accumulated Depreciation
Furniture and fixtures 1,662 283 - 1,945
Vehicles 4 3 - 7
Leasehold improvements 733 86 - 819
2,399 372 - 2,771
Net book value 998 816

As of 31 December 2010 the insurance on tangible assets amounts to TL 795 thousand (31
December 2009: TL 780 thousand) and the insurance premium amounts to TL 3 thousand (31

December 2009: TL 2,824 thousand).
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9.  TANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)

Usetful lives
Vehicles 5
Furniture and fixture 3-15
Leasehold improvements 3-10

10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The movement of intangible assets for the period ended as of 31 December 2010 is as follows:

1 January 31 December
2010 Additions Disposals 2010
Acquisition Cost

Rights 2,183 681 - 2,864
Other (software) 666 - - 666
2,849 681 - 3,530

Accumulated

Amortization
Rights 753 669 - 1,422
Other( Software) 616 50 - 666
1,369 719 - 2,088
Net book value 1,480 1,442

The movement of intangible assets for the period ended as of 31 December 2009 is as follows:

1 January 31 December
2009 Additions Disposals 2008
Acquisition Cost
Rights 1,136 1,047 - 2,183
Other (software) 666 - - 666
1,802 1,047 - 2,849
Accumulated
Amortization
Rights 324 429 - 753
Other (sofiware) 501 115 - 616
825 544 - 1,369
Net book value 977 1,480
The Company does not have internally generated intangible asset as at 31 December 2010 and 31
December 2009.
Useful lives
Rights 3-5
Other 5
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11.

TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Corporate Tax

The Company is subject to the Turkish corporate taxes. Provision is made in the accompanying
financial statements for the estimated charge based on the Company’s results for the year.

Corporate tax is applied on taxable corporate income, which is calculated from the statutory
accounting profit by adding non-deductible expenses, and by deducting exempt income and other
non-taxable income ( carried forward losses if available and investment incentives if preferred).

The effective tax rate in 2010 is 20% (2009: 20%).

In Turkey, advance tax returns are filed on a quarterly basis. The advance corporate income tax is
calculated as 20% of the income in the year 2010 (2009: 20%).

Losses can be carried forward for offset against future taxable income for up to 5 vears.
However, losses cannot be carried back for offset against profits from previous periods.

In Turkey, there is no procedure for a final and definitive agreement on tax assessments.
Companies file their tax returns between 1 April and 25 April of the following year (between 1st
and 25th of the following 4. month of the tax year for the tax responsibles who have special tax
vears}). Tax authorities may, however, examine such returns and the underlying accounting
records and may revise assessments within five years.

Income Withholding Tax

In addition to corporate taxes, companies should also calculate income withholding taxes and
funds surcharge on any dividends distributed, except for companies receiving dividends who are
resident companies in Turkey and Turkish branches of foreign companies. Income tax
withholding 24 April 2003 - 22 July 2006 is 10% among all companies. This rate since 22 July
2006, by the Council of Ministers No. 2006/10731 of 15% is applied. Undistributed dividends
incorporated in share capital are not subject to income tax withholding.

Withbolding tax at the rate of 19.8% is still applied to investment allowances relating to

investment incentive certificates obtained prior to 24 April 2003. Subsequent to this date, the
investments without investment incentive certificates do not qualify for tax allowance.
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11. TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

Income Withholding Tax (Cont’d)

Reconciliation of tax charge:
31 December 2010 31 December 2009

Reported profit before taxation 5,206 9,497

Calculated taxation on reported profit (1,041) (1,889
Permanent differences:

' Nondeductibie expenses 27N {143)

Other non-taxable income 1 -

Tax dispute expense - {500)

Tax Charge (1,067) (2,532)

The corporate tax payable as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 is as follows:

31 December 2010 31 December 2609
Corporate tax provision 903 4,551
Prepaid taxes (2,924) (2,361)
Corporate tax payable (2,021) (*) 2,190(*%)

(*) Presented in “Other Assets " in the financial statements.
(**) Presented in “Taxes payable and liabilities” in the financial statements

The tax charge in the income statement for the period ended as at 31 December is as summarized

below:
1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
Current tax charge (903) (4,551)
Provision for tax dispute - (500)
Deferred tax (charge)/benefit (164) 2,519
(1,067) (2,532)

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. :

The effective corporate tax rate is 20% as at 31 December 2010 (31 December 2009: 20%). The

Company calculates deferred tax assets and liabilities according to the balance sheet liability
method on the temporary differences that will be utilized using the rate 20%.
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11.

TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

Breakdown of temporary differences and deferred tax assets and liabilities that are calculated by
using current tax rates as at 31 December 2010, 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008 is as

follows:
(Restated (Restated
Note 2.6) Note 2.6)
31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2008
Temporary Differences
Unearned factoring interest income 5,070 6,382 -
Factoring receivable provisions and
adjustments 11,420 11,874 4,825
Retirement pay provision 151 87 57
Unused vacation accrual 449 314 -
Valuation differences of derivative financial
assets 8 - 285
Other - - 6
Temporary differences related to deferred
tax assets 17,098 18,657 5,173
Valuation differences of derivative financial
assets - 814 -
Temporary differences on tangible and
intangible assets 908 906 760
Valuation differences of funds borrowed 50 30 46
Valuation differences of time deposits 17 9 -
Other 56 1 63
Temporary differences related to deferred
tax liabilities 1,031 1,760 874
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities)
Uneamed factoring interest income 1,014 1,276 -
Factoring receivable provisions and adjustments 2,284 2,375 965
Retirement pay provision 31 17 11
Unused vacation accrual 90 63 -
Valuation differences of derivative financial assets 1 - 57
Other - - |
Deferred tax assets 3,420 3,731 1,034
Valuation differences of derivative financial assets - (163) -
Temporary differences on tangible and intangible
assets (182) (181) (152)
Valuation differences of funds borrowed (10) (6) (9)
Valuation differences of time deposits (3) (2) -
Other (10) - {13)
Deferred tax liabilities (205) (352) (174)
Deferred tax assets (net) 3,215 3,379 860
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11. TAX ASSETS AND LIARBILITIES (Cont’d)

Movement of deferred tax assets in the period is as follows:

1 January- 1 January-

31 December 2010 31 December 2009

1 January 3,379 860
Deferred tax income/ (expense) (164) 2,519
31 December 3,215 3,379

12, OTHER ASSETS
Details of other assets as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 are as follows:

31 December 2010 31 December 2009
TL FC TL FC
Advance corporate tax {note 11) 2,021 - - -
Commission return receivable 1,300 - - -
Prepaid expenses 240 - 117 -
Other 105 - 25 -
3,666 - 142 -

13. FUNDS BORROWED

Details of funds borrowed as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 are as follows:

31 PDecember 2010 31 December 2009

TL FC TL FC
Funds Borrowed 830,487 680,464 732,317 349,065
830,487 680,464 732,317 349,065

31 December 2010
Interest TL Equivalent

Rate 1 Year and
Original Amount (%%)* Up to 1 Year over
TL 830,487 7.35-9.24 830,487 -
USD 349,187 2.50-3.25 539,843 -
EURO 68,626 2.80-3.20 140,621 -
Total 1,510,951 -
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13.

14.

15.

FUNDS BORROWED (Cont’d)
31 December 2009
Interest TL Equivalent

Rate I Year and
Original Amount {(%o)* Upto1 Year over
TL 732,317 7.35-7.87 732,317 -
USD 170,697 3.06-6.00 257,018 -
EURO 42,609 4.38-6.00 92,047 -
Total 1,081,382 -

* These rates represent the interest rate range of outstanding funds borrowed with fixed and
floating rates as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009.

There is no guarantee given for the funds borrowed as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December

2009.

SUNDRY CREDITORS

Details of sundry creditors as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 are as follows:

31 December 2010 31 December 2009
TL FC TL FC
Sundry.creditors 247 1 194 8
Transitory liability
accounts 29 - - -
276 1 194 8

TAXES PAYABLE AND LIABILITIES

Details of taxes payable and liabilities as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 are as

follows:
31 December 2010 31 December 2009

TL FC TL FC
Corporate tax payable - - 2,190 -
BITT payable 484 - 409 -
Income tax payable 482 - 408 -
Premium payable 188 - 160 -
V.A.T payable 10 - 13 -
Stamp tax payable 12 - 8 -
1,176 - 3,188 -
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16.

16.1.

PROVISIONS

Details of provisions as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 are as follows:

31 December 2010 31 December 2009

TL FC TL FC
Other provisions: 50 - 1,037 -
Greneric provisions - - 500 -
Provision for tax dispute - 500 -
Other 50 - 37 -
Provision for employee benefits 1,139 - 842 -

1,189 - 1,879 -

Generic Provisions

Movement of generic provision in the period is as follows:

31 December 2010 31 December 2009

Balance at 1 January 500 1,268
Provision provided during the period - (100)
Transfer from other provisions 500 {(663)
Transfer to specific provisions (1,000) -

' - 500

Other Provisions
Provision for tax dispute

In 2009, Revenue Administration of the Turkish Ministry of Finance has initiated general tax
inspections covering the factoring sector for the 2008 financial period. Tt is stated that the
inspections are carried out in accordance with the prevailing taxation legislation. Based on the
inspections on the accounts of factoring companies, since the principal of unearned revenue that
is recorded under unearned revenue account in accordance with the Communiqué on “The
Application of Uniform Charts of Accounts and its Guide Book In Connection to the
Establishment and Main Activities of Finance Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies and
The Format of the Financial Statements for Public Presentation” published in the Official Gazette
No: 26525 on 17 May 2007 and provision for impaired factoring receivables arising from
factoring transactions at either law-suit or execution stage has not been recorded as revenue, they
have been criticised and tax has been levied on them and a penalty for loss of tax has been let-off.
Accordingly, the Company has been assessed and imposed to tax penalties. The Company has
requested a settlement with the tax authorities regarding the related assessment and as a result of
the settlement, the Company was not exposed to any liabilities; TL 500 thousand of provision
reflected in prior financial statements has been transferred first to the generic provision than to
the specific provision account.

Other Provisions

As of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, other provisions amounting to TL 41 thousand
and TL 37 thousand respectively, include provision for credit card expenses.
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16.

16.2.

PROVISIONS (Cont’d)
Provision for Employee Benefits

Provision for employee benefits include retirement pay provision amounting to TL 151 thousand
(31 December 2009: TL 87 thousand), unused vacation accrual amounting to TL 449 thousand (31
December 2009: TL 314 thousand) and personnel premium provision amounting to TL 539
thousand (31 December 2009: TL 441 thousand) as at 31 December 2010.

Retirement Pay Provision

Under the Turkish Labor Law, the Company is required to pay employment fermination benefits to
each employee whose contract is terminated after one service year or who is entitled to a
retirement at the age of 60 (58 for women) after 25 service years (20 for women) or who is called
for military service or who is dead. Some transitional provisions related to the pre-retirement
service term were excluded from the scope of the Law since the related law was amended as of 23
May 2002. The amount payable consists of one month’s salary limited fo a maximum of TL
2,517.01 (full) for each period of service as at 31 December 2010 (31 December 2009: TL 2,365.16
(full)).

The principal assumption is that the maximum liability for each year of service will increase
parallel with inflation. Thus, the discount rate applied represents the expected real rate after
adjusting for the anticipated effects of future inflation. Consequently, in the accompanying
financial statements as at 31 December 2010, the provision has been calculated by estimating the
present value of the future probable obligation of the Company arising from the retirement of the
employees. The provisions at the respective balance sheet dates have been calculated assuming an
anmual inflation rate of 5.1% and a discount rate of 10%, resulting in a real discount rate of
approximately 4,66%. (31 December 2009: inflation rate of 4,8% , discount rate of 10%, real
discount rate of 5,92% ). Estimated ratio for retirement pay amounts that would not be paid
because of voluntary leave is 70%. The company, effective from 1 January 2011 the calculation
of retirement pay provision for the TL 2,623.23 (full) ceiling amount has taken into
consideration.

Movement of retirement pay provision in the period is as follows:

31 December 2010 31 December 2009

Balance at I January 87 56
Provision provided for the period 140 31
Payments during the period (76) -
Balance at the end of the period 151 87

Personnel Bonus Provision

Movement of the personne] bonus provision in the period is as follows:

31 December 2010 31 December 2009
Balance at 1 January 441 327
Paid in the period (1,940) (327)
Provision provided for the period 2,038 441
Balance at the end of the period 539 441
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16.

16.2.

17.

17.1

PROVISIONS (Cont*d)
Provision for Employee Benefits (cont’d)
Unused Vacation Accrual

Movement of the unused vacation accrual during the period is as follows:

31 December 2010 31 December 2009
Balance at 1 January 314 -
Paid in the period : (33) -
Provision provided for the period 168 314
Balance at the end of the period 449 314

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Paid-in Capital

As at 31 December 2010, the Company’s share capital amounts to TL 21,000 thousand (31
December 2009: TL 19,280 thousand). As at 31 December 2010 the Company has 2,100,000,000
total registered shares consisting of 1,057,724,557 preferred shares and 1,042,275,443 ordinary
shares with a par value of Kr 1each (31 December 2009: TL 1,928,000,000).

In accordance with the resolution issued at the General Assembly Meeting held on 28 April 2010,
the Company has decided to transfer TL 1,720 thousand of 2009°s profit to capital; issue new
shares and distribute them as bonus shares to shareholders and allocate the remaining profit to
legal and extraordinary reserves. The Company has decided to file an application to the CMB for
the declaration and registration of the related capital transfer upen its BOD meeting held on 14
May 2010. Capital increase was approved by the CMB as at 23 August 2010 and published in the
Trade Registry Gazette dated § September 2010.

The inflation adjustments to all sharcholders’ equity items can be only available for and used in
the bonus share issue or loss offsetting, while carrying amount of extraordinary reserves can be
only used in the bonus share issue, profit distribution in cash or loss offsetting.

Article 399 of Section 15 in the Communiqué Serial: XI, No: 25 requires the amount followed
under the “accumulated losses™ account which resulted from the first financial statements adjusted
for inflation accounting should be taken into account as an allowance during the distributable
profit calculation in compliance with the profit distribution requirements of the CMB. Also, the
amount followed under the “accumulated losses” account can be deducted against profit for the
period and undistributed retained earnings, if any, and the remaining loss is to be deducted against
in the order of extraordinary reserves, statutory reserves and capital reserves arising from equity
inflation adjustments. Following the related treatment, the Company’s accumulated losses
amounting to TL 77,212 thousand, which was resulted from the subsequent offsetting of the
Company’s net profit for the period as of 31 December 2004 against extraordinary reserves and
statutory reserves, was recognized in the financial statements by offsetting against the capital
adjustment account based on the General Assembly’s resolution dated 29 March 2005.
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17.

17.2.

17.3.

17.4.

17.5.

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (Cont’d)

Capital Reserves

Capital reserves amounting to TL 2,122 thousand as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009
includes the capital reserves from inflation adjustments to paid-in capital.

Profit Reserves

The Company’s profit reserves comprise of the first legal reserves amounting to TL 1,408 thousand
as at 31 December 2010 (31 December 2009: TL 970 thousand).

Retained Earnings

As at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the Company’s retained earnings amount to TL
21,348 thousand and TL 16,541 thousand respectively.

Profit Distribution

Retained earnings on statutory books can be distributed except the sentence related with legal
reserves that is specified below.

The legal reserves consist of the first and second legal reserves, appropriated in accordance with
the Turkish Commercial Code. The first legal reserve is appropriated out of historical statutory
profits at the rate of 5% per annum, until the total reserve reaches 20% of the historical paid-in
share capital. The second legal reserve is appropriated after the first legal reserve and dividends, at
the rate of 10% per annum of all cash dividend distributions. As per Turkish Commercial Code, the
first legal reserve can only be offset against losses to the point that the legal reserves exceed 50%
of the paid-in capital.

The capital raise to be made through the internal resources should be based on the lower of the
amounts calculated using the CMB’s accounting procedures and the figures recorded to legal
books. :

In addition, in accordance with the requirements of the Turkish Commercial Code, the Company is
primarily required to appropriate legal reserves from the statutory records. If net distributable profit
in legal books is greater than the CMB net distributable profit, all of the CMB net distributable
profit should be distributed, if not, all of the net distributable profit in legal books should be
distributed. If loss is incurred as per the Company’s CMB financial statements or in the legal
books, no profit distribution is made.

39



GARANTI FAKTORING HIiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2010

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

18.

19.

OPERATING INCOME
The details of operating income for the periods ended as of 31 December 2010 and 31 December
2009 are as follows:
I January-
31 December 2009
1 January- (Restated
31 December 2010 Note 2.6
Factoring interest income 76,614 63,139
Factoring commission income (nef) 16,274 16,257
Commission income 17,021 16,767
Commission expense (747) (510)
Balance at the end of the year 92,888 79,396

OPERATING EXPENSES

The details of operating expenses for the periods ended as at 31 December 2010 and 31

December 2009 are as follows:

1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
Personnel expenses 13,270 11,313
Customer referral commission expenses 321 1,271
Vehicle expenses 1,340 1,100
Depreciation and amortization expenses 1,138 916
Communication expenses 849 805
Data processing maintenance and contract
expenses 947 565
Advertising expenses 887 539
Travel expenses 534 447
Law-suit expenses 26 408
Consultancy expenses 676 396
Office rent expenses 696 396
Subscription expenses 277 363
Maintenance and repair expenses 320 273
Representation expenses 233 251
Taxes and duties expenses 258 137
Training expenses 134 99
Retirement pay provision 140 31
Other 602 353
Balance at the end of the year 19,663

22,648
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19. OPERATING EXPENSES (Cont’d)

The details of personnel expenses classified under operating expenses for the years end as at 31

December 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

1 January- 1 January-

31 December 2010 31 December 2009

Salaries 8,562 7,042
Bonuses 2,038 1,853
Social security premium employer’s share 952 7717
Transportation expenses 407 377
Meal expenses 466 369
Unused vacation accrual 168 314
Overtime expenses 230 184
Insurance expenses 225 152
Unemployment insurance employer’s share 112 73
Health expenses 58 86
Compensation expenses 5 37
Other 47 49
13,270 11,313

20. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

The details of other operating income for the periods ended as at 31 December 2010 and 31

December 2009 are as follows:

1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
Foreign exchange gains 2,117,454 1,126,983
Interest income on bank deposits 23,034 15,426
Interest income on financial assets held for
trading 515 536
Income on derivative financial transactions 68,325 3,271
Reversal of the generic provision - 100
Collections from specific provision 1,007 -
Other ‘ 269 301
2,211,504 1,146,617
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21. FINANCE EXPENSES

The details of finance expenses for the periods ended as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December

2009 are as follows:
1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
Interest expenses on funds borrowed 72,543 59,470
Fees and commissions paid 631 942

73,174 60,412

22, SPECIFIC PROVISIONS FOR NON-PERFORMING RECEIVABLES

The details of provision for non-performing receivables for the periods ended as at 31 December
2010 and 31 December 2009 are as follows:

1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2010 31 December 2009

Specific provision
expenses 565 3,791
565 3,791

23. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The details of other operating expenses for the periods ended as at 31 December 2010 and 31
December 2009 are as follows:

1 January-

31 December 2009

1 January- (Restated

31 December 2010 Note 2.6)

Foreign exchange losses 2,119,147 1,127,528
Losses on derivative financial transactions 83,634 4,619
Other operating expenses 18 503
' 2,202,799 1,132,650
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24,

25.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Calculation of earnings per share for the periods ended as at 31 December 2010 and 31
December 2009 are as follows:

1 January-

31 December 2009

1 January- (Restated

31 December 2010 Note 2.6)

Profit for the period (thousands of TL) 4,139 6,965
Weighted average share with 1 KR of nominal

value (¥) _ 2,100 2,100

FEarnings per thousand shares (KR) 197.10 331.67

* Number of ordinary shares has been increased by internal resources as bonus shares in 2010. Therefore number of
ordinary shares information for the previous period has been updated in order o make comparative presentation,
according to IAS 33 “Earnings per share"standard.

EXPLANATIONS REGARDING RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of receivables and payables due from related parties as of 31 December 2010 and 31
December 2009 are as follows:

31 December 2010 31 December 2009
TL FC TL FC
Bank balances
Tiirkiye Garanti Bankasi A.S.
Demand deposits 3,194 1,661 476 1,787
Garantibank International NV
Demand deposits 12 57 4 39
: 3,206 1,718 480 1,826

The amount of cheques and notes at custody by Tiirkiye Garanti Bankas1 A.S. related with factoring
receivables as at 31 December 2010 is TL 300,986 thousand (31 December 2009: TL 289,167

thousand).
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
TL FC TL FC
Factoring receivables
Dogus Yaym Grubu A.S. 34,626 - 38,156 -
34,626 - 38,156 -
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
TL FC TL FC
Other receivables
Tiirkiye Garanti Bankas1 A.S. (*) 1,300 - -
1,300 - -

(*) Receivable is related to the commission returns.
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25.

EXPLANATIONS REGARDING RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

31 December 2010 31 December 2009
TL FC TL FC
Sundry creditors
Garanti Finansal Kiralama A.S. - - 12 -
Garanti Filo Yonetimi A.S. 1 - 1 -
Garanti Emeklilik ve Hayat
AS. - - - 6
1 - 13 6

The Company has made purchases amounting to TL 569 thousand from Garanti Biligim
Teknolojisi ve Ticaret A.$ for the period ended as at 31 December 2010 (31 December 2009: TL

028 thousand).

Income and expenses from related parties for the periods ended as at 31 December 2010 and 31

December 2009 are as follows:

1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
Factoring interest income
Dogus Yayin Grubu A.S. 2,421 2,773
2,421 2,773
Interest income on bank deposits
Tiirkiye Garanti Bankas1 A.S. 3,050 2,350
3,050 2,350
Factoring commission income
Dogus Yaym Grubu A.S. 301 320
3 320
Interest expenses on funds borrowed
Tiirkiye Garanti Bankasi A.S. 3,821 1,784
(Garanti Bank International NV 4,635 2,030
8,456 3,814
General Administrative Expenses
Tirkiye Garanti Bankasi AS (Customer referral commission
expenses and rent expenses) 566 1,441
Garanti Filo Y6netim Hizmetleri AS (Car rental expenses) 856 566
Garanti Bilisim Teknolojisi ve Ticaret AS (Data processing
expenses) 903 409
Garanti Finansal Kiralama AS (Office rent expenses) 224 186
2,549 2,602

The amount of salary and other benefits provided to board of directors and top management by the
Company for the period ended as at 31 December 2010 is TL. 1,361 thousand (31 December 2009:

TI. 1,265 thousand}.
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26. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
26.1. Guarantees Received

Guarantees received for the Company’s factoring receivables as at 31 December 2010 and 31
December 2009 is as follows:

31 December 2010 31 December 2009

TL FC TL FC
Customer notes 81,527 640,226 69,390 503,985
Mortgage 40,661 - 25,250 -
Customer cheques - - 55 -
Letters of guarantee - 1,722 - -
122,188 641,948 04,695 503,985

26.2. Guarantees Given

Guarantees given as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 consist of letters of guarantee
given to the institutions below: , :

31 December 2010 31 December 2009
TL FC TL FC
Tax authority 1,008 - 1,008 -
Law court 236 - 398 -
Other 7 - 7 -
1,251 - 1,413 -

26.3. Debt Securities Investments

TL equivalent of nominal values of commitments given related to credit linked note (Please refer to
Note 4) as at 31 December 2010 is as follows:

31 December 2010 31 December 2009
TL FC TL FC
Commitments given related
to the Credit Linked Notes - 8,972 - 13,825
- 8,972 - 13,825

26.4. Currency Swap Buy-Sell Agreements

The details of currency swap buy and sell agreements as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December

2009 is as follows:
31 December 2010 31 December 2009

TL FC TL FC

Currency swap buy
transactions 12,449 394,741 24,823 129,863

Currency swap sell
transactions 392,851 : 14,550 122,398 31,475
405,300 409,291 147,221 161,338
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27. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
27.1. Financial Risk Management Purposes and Policies

The Company is exposed to various risks during its operations:

Credit Risk

Liquidity-Risk

Market Risk

The purpose of this note is to give information about the Company’s objectives, policies and
processes for the management of above risks when exposed to these risks.

The Company’s Board of Directors is broadly responsible for the determination of the risk
management framework and supervision activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are constituted for identifying and analyzing the risks
that the Company may be exposed to. Risk management policies’ objective is to comprise
suitable risk limit controls, monitoring the risks and keeping to the limits for the Company’s
risks. The Company helps its personnel to understand their roles and responsibilities by providing
disciplined and positive control environment with various training and management standards
and processes.

27.1.1 Credir Risk

The Company is subject to credit risk through its factoring operations. The Risk Management and
Analysis Department of the Company is responsible to manage the credit risk. The Company
requires a certain amount of collateral in respect of its financial assets. The Company
management developed controls for early phases of credit approval and credit risk monitoring
and management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis. The Company does not enter into factoring transaction with the firms which do
not meet the predetermined criteria for credit approval. Credit evaluations are performed on all
customers by Credit Risk Committee based on their authorization limits. Credit Risk Committee
meets every week regularly and performs credit evaluations. The Company has early warning
controls with respect to the monitoring of on-going credit risks and the Company regularly
performs scoring of the creditworthiness of the customers. A special software program has been
developed to monitor the credit risk of the Company. At balance sheet date, there were no
significant concentrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.
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27. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
27.1 Financial Risk Management Purposes and Policies (cont’d)

27.1.2 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk arises in the general funding of the Company’s activities and in the management of
positions. It includes both risk of being unable to fund assets at appropriate maturities and rates
and risk of being unable to liquidate an asset at a reasonable price and in an appropriate time
frame. The Company has access to funding sources from banks. The Company contimiously
assesses liquidity risk by identifying and monitoring changes in funding required in meeting
business goals and targets set in terms of the overall Company strategy.

27.1.3 Market Risk

All held for trading financial instruments are exposed to market risk. Market risk is the risk that
changes in market prices will decrease the value of a financial asset. All financial instruments are
stated at fair value and the changes in market prices affect operating income of the Company. The
Company hedges itself for the changing market conditions through held for trading financial
instruments. Market risk is managed throngh derivatives within the limits approved by
management and risk preventive positions are held. :

(i) Foreign Currency Risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk through transactions (such as factoring operations and
borrowings) in foreign currencies. As the currency in which the Company presents its financial
statements is TL, the financial statements are affected by movements in the exchange rates
against TL. The Company uses currency swap and forward contracts to manage its exposure to
foreign currency risk.

(ii) Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s operations are subject to the risk of interest rate fluctuations to the extent that
interest earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities mature or re-price at different times or in
differing amounts. The Company is also exposed to interest rate risk due to its assets and
liabilities with floating rates such as Euribor and repricing of them. Risk management activities
are aimed at optimizing nef interest income, given market interest rate levels consistent with the
Company’s business strategies.
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GARANTI FAKTORING HiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2010

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

27 NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

27.2 [Explanations on Risk Management {cont’d)

27.2.2  Liguidity Risk

The following table provides an analysis for the Company’s financial liabilitics by grouping the
contractual maturities as of the balance sheet date. Amounts in the following table are the

undiscounted contractual cash flows,

31 December 2010

More
Carrying Total Expected Less than 3 than 5
Contractual Maturities Amount Cash Outflows Months  3-12 month 1-5 year years
Non-derivative financial
liahilities 1,512,872 1,522,769 889,375 585,756 47,638 -
Funds borrowed 1,510,951 1,520,848 887,454 585,756 47,638 -
Factoring payables 1,644 1,644 1,644 - - -
Sundry creditors 277 277 277 - - -
More
Carrying Total Expected Less than 3 than 5
Contractual Maturities Amount Cash Outflows Months 3-12 month 1-5 year years
Derivative financial
liabilities (211) (211) {211) - - -
Derivative cash inflows 407,190 407,190 407,190 - - -
Derivative cash outflows (407.401) (407.401) {407,401} - - -
31 December 2009
More
Carrying  Total Expected Less than 3 than 5
Contractual Maturities Amount  Cash Outflows Months  3-12 month 1-5 year years
Non-derjvative financial
liabilities 1,081,200 1,092,149 776,043 360,561 - -
Funds borrowed 1,081,382 1,091,631 775,525 360,561 - -
Factoring payables 316 316 316 - - -
Sundry creditors 202 202 202 - - -
More
Carrying  Total Expected Less than 3 than 5
Contractual Maturities Amount  Cash Qutflows Months  3-12 month 1-5 year years
Derivative financial
liabilities 813 813 813 - - -
Derivative cash inflows 154,686 154,686 154,686 - - -
Derivative cash outflows (153,873) (153,873) (153,873) - - -
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GARANTI FAKTORING HIZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2010.
(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

27 NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
27.2 Explanations on Risk Management (cont’d)

27.2.3 Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

Weighted average effective interest rates applied to financial instruments as at 31 December 2010 and 31
December 2009 are as follows:

31 December 2010 31 December 2009
USD EURO GBP TL USD EURO GBP TL
(%) (%) Y Yo (%) (%) ) (a)
Assets
Banks
Time deposits - - - 900 - - - 10.50
Financial instruments
held for trading 2.35 9.50 - - 2.33 7.25 - -
Factoring receivables 3.77 3.57 - 867 4.75 4,42 908 9.24
Liabilities
Funds borrowed 2.93 3.57 - 768 4.48 5.11 - 7.54

Remaining maturities of the assets and liabilities for repricing do not differ materially from the remaining
maturities that are presented in liguidity risk of the Company as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December
2009. Therefore, no additional table for interest rate risk is presented in the financial statement
disclosures.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

The Company’s financial instruments that have interest rate sensitivity as at 31 December 2010 and 31
December 2009 are as follows:

Carrying Value

Fixed Rate 31 December 2010 31 December 2009
Factoring receivables 1,252,604 610,742
Time deposits 101,349 250,826
Factoring payables 1,644 316
Funds borrowed 1,444 300 092,781
Floating Rate

Factoring receivables 174,694 232,994
Financial investments 9,008 13,694
Funds borrowed 66,651 88,601

If interest rates of the floating rate instruments denominated in USD and EURO were 100 basis point
higher/lower at the date of reissue and all other variables were constant, net income for the period would
decrease/increase by TL 1,171 thousand TL (31 December 2009: TL 1,584 thousand) as a result of higher/lower
interest expense from floating interest rate financial instruments.
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GARANTI FAKTORING HiZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2010

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL”) unless otherwise indicated,)
27 NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
27.2 Explanations on Risk Management {cont’d)

27.2.3 Market Risk (cont’d)
Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk arising from the value changes on financial instruments related
with the change in exchange rates. The Company is exposed to currency risk due to its foreign
currency borrowings. The currencies that the foreign currency risk of the Company mainly arises
from are USD, Euro and GBP. As the financial statements of the Company are presented in TL, the
financial statements are affected by fluctuations in these exchange rates against TL. The
Company’s net short position arises from the assets, liabilities and derivative financial instruments
in foreign currencies as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009.

Foreign currency assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 are as

follows:
31 December 2410 31 December 2009
(TL equivalentin  (TL equivalent in
thousands) thousands)
A. Foreign currency monetary assets 300,259 246,402
B. Foreign currency monetary liabilities (680,620) (349,091)
C. Derivative financial instruments 380,192 98,388
Net foreign currency position (A+B+C) (169) (4,301)
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GARANTI FAKTORING HIZMETLERI A.S.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2010

{(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL"} unless otherwise indicated.)
27. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
27.2 Explanations. on Risk Management (cont’d)
27.2.3 Market Risk (cont’d)
Foreign currency risk (cont’'d)

10% decrease in the TL against the relevant foreign currencies as of 31 December 2010 results
with a decrease in profit before tax for the period amounting to TL 17 thousand (31 December
2009: TL 430 thousand decrease). This analysis is made with the assumption that the other
variables were held constant as of 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009.

Profit / (Loss) 31 December 2010 31 December 2009
USD 27 (446)
EURO 29 15
GBP (76) (2)
Other 3 3
Total (a7 (430)
Capital Risk Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the profit through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
capital structure of the Company consists of debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity
comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings disclosed in Note 17.

The Company management reviews the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital.. As a part of this review, the management considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital and presents to the Board of Directors for approval.

The overall strategy of the Company does not differ materially from the prior period.
28 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company has calculated fair values of financial instruments using available market
information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, as the judgment is necessary to
interpret market data to determine the estimated fair value, the calculated fair values may not be
fully reflective of the value that could be realized in the current circumstances. Management
assumes that the fair value of funds borrowed and marketable securities approximate their
carrying value as they were repriced just before the balance sheet date due to their floating
interest rates like Euribor and etc. Management also assumes that the fair values of other financial
assets and liabilities at amortized cost including cash and banks, other financial assets and short
term bank Joans denominated in TL approximate their carrying values due to their short term
nature.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2010

(Amounts are expressed in Turkish Lira (thousands of “TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Fair Value of Financial Instruments Classification

The table below presents the fair value determination method of the financial instruments at
fair value, The method for each level is as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

31 December 2010 : Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets held for trading - 9,008 - 9,008
Derivative financial assets held for trading - 303 - 303
- 9,311 - 9,311

Derivative financial liabilities held for
trading - 311 - 311
- 31 - 311
31 December 2009 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets held for trading - 13,694 - 13,694
Derivative financial assets held for trading - 882 - 882
14,576 14,576

Derivative financial liabilities held for

trading - 68 - 68
68 68

29.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

None.
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